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STATEMENT OF GENERAL PAUL GORMANy USA (Rete.}y FORMER
COMMANDERs SCUTHERN COMMANDs UeS. ARMY

General Gorman; Thank yous Senator Kerrye

I woulg add one footnote to the bilos Entered the tederal
service from the state of Massachusetts,

Senator Kerryi That is not a footnote, General.. That is
a major qualification. Thank youe

General Gormani It is truey, siry, that in neariy aill of
Ry official report; and in my speeches and in ay writings
since 1983. I have characterized narcotics trafficing from
Latin America as a threat to the natlonal security of this
country.

After I iett active auty in 1985, I served as a
consultani to the President's Commission on Organized Crime
ang prepared a detalled uritten‘repOft for the Commissioners,
which set forth the reasons why I belleved that the
Administratlon and the Congress should formally adopt the
view that natlonal security was Involved In drug
trafticking.

I have three times testified to Committees of the
Congress on this subjects and I have met lndividuaily to
discuss that testimony with members of both bodles. So I am

very grateful to you for this cpportunity to relterate my

-convictlon that the American people must understandy,

ungerstand much better than they ever have in the pasts how
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thelr safety and that of thelr chlldren is threatenea by
Latin drug ccensplracies dramatically more successful at
subversion In the United States than any that are centered In
Moscowe

Nows 1 did not come up to talk today about El Salvador
and ] do not know anythling about the proposal to lmplant a
phony shipaent of arms lq Et Salvador. It would have been a
very stupld move In u; viewe

But I would llike to make the pointy Senator Moynihan,
because I think it is germane to the toplc here tooay;'that I
do Indeed resember your speech in 1983, anc both Ambassador
Pickering ang San Salvador and I resolQed to test the thesis
advanced by the rector of the university.

Ana in August of 1984, I presented to the Select
Committee on Intelilgence of the Senate the results of that
investigation. ke sent people into the countryside to buy
arms. We made every effort through the Sailvacoran armed
tforces to collect documents which contalned in them

references to arms In the possession of the guerillas. We

examined weapons taken from the battlefielase HWe cojlectea
in all over 500 weapons which had serial numbers on them
which coula be traced.

70 percent of those weapons were wmneapons that were
shipped from the Unltea States to the Republlic of Vietnam

durlng the Yietnam War and In our view coulc only have

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC,
20 F ST., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 (202} 628-9300




\
pEE

pIR

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

24

69

entered E} Salvador via the communist infiltration systeme.
Over 20 percent of the weapons we had no records of. We

haa very good records of the weapons we shipped into Ef

| Salvador. Sc my conclusion at the time was the rector was

siaply wrong.

Nows he may have been right in the sense that in 1983 no
weapons were coming in because the weapons were already there
anda what was coming In was cryptologic materialy people who
had been tralned on the outside and were being returnec to
lead the effort on the Insides ammunition, et cetera.,

I dia report to your Cﬁmmlttees you will recalls a
specific instance wherey while we did not get a smoking guny
we did come very close to doing soy and In the ensulng battle
picked up on the battlefield three rocket launchers of
Chinese manufactures the serial nuabers of which were
identicaly that Is to say in the same serlesy as those found
in a warehouse in Grenada in the previous months.

Se my corcluslon |s quite contrary to yourss sire. I
think the Nicaraguans were complicit In movlng'arms jnto EI
Salvado}.

Nowse my polnt in that belng germane to these proceedlings
is simply that I was able to Investigate that, because the
United States haa in place a tactlcal Intelligence mechanism

in Central America whlch could be brought toc bear on Issues

that were considered germane to the national security and of
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interest to the Congress of the United States.

There is no comparable apparatus belng brought.to bear on
the internnational drug traftic. Ana that, siry I think is a
matter of interest to you in your present pursultse.

Nows tet me cetall four reasons why 1 belleve that drug
traftficking is 3 national securlty threat. First of all, as
Mr. Morgenthau made very evident, most of the iltegal drugs
which are purchased by Americans come from Latin America and
the Carlibbeany and.present and foreseen conspnption of these
drugs will subvert milllons of Americans from productlive
pursuits and It will channel enormous amounts of money into
the heads of forelgn criminals who are avowed enemies of this

countrye.

1 have seen credible estimatesy Mr. Chalrwan, that the
aggregate annual financlal Impact of the natlon'®s drug habit,
taking into account that lost productivitys taking Into
account clinlcal costss taking Into account public
information campaigns to cut consumptlions taking Into account
the expenditures wilthin our legal systemsy, as well as al} ot
the efforts of the Unlted States overseas to interalct
smugglers or to eradicate the plants uhére growny taking into
account alil of thaty you are looklng at a sum of maney which .
approximates what we spend for national defense -- an
enormous sutlay.

My secconc¢ reason for believing thls is a matter for
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natlonal security is that the Latin c¢riminal cartels who have
profited fros the depravity of some Americans constitute an
international uncerworid so extensives so wealthys ancd so

powerful that it can literally buy governments ancg

destabilize entlre socletles -— your point about the offers

to pay aoff the national debt of two nations in the region.

This underworids owned and operated by these cartels,
speclallizea as It is for the smuggling of narcoctic and
psychotropic substances and for the movements of large
amounts of moneys often In large sums of Aserican greenbacks,
this network has lent jtself to the pursults of those who are
engaged in |ilicit movements of aras or munitions for
whatever purposes.

It yéu want to move arms or munitions in Latin America,
the establlshed'netuorks are owned by the cirteis. It has
lent itselt to the purposes of terroristss of saboteursy of
spiess ot jnsurgentss and of subversives.

while the interests of the narcotrafflckers are not
always ldentlcal.to these othersy the prevalence ot their
cooperation country by country reflects thelr common outlaw
status and their common interest In ineffectual government in
any demccratic countrye.

Ana in this respects I think It is germane to note that
among our nelghbors only the governments of Cuba and

Nicaragua have refused to cooperate wlth our own government
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agalnst the harcotics trattickers and have instead gliven them
safe haven and other assistance.

My third reason for my conviction that this is a national
security matter rests on the fact that drug trafficking, as
Mr. Morgenthau alluded toy constitutes a clear and present
danger to the very survival of democracy In certaln countries

which have laoang been friends and allies of the Unlted

Statese.

Nowy there are many countries that are sc¢ imperilegy by I
am canfident that none Is at the moment more threatenea than
Colombia, a democracy particularly deserving of our national
unagerstanding ane support. Amerlca®s drug habit, our
consumptijon ¢f Cclomblan drugss has brought to the people of
Colombia political chaoss soclal upheavaly ana pervaslve
teare.

Colombia's system of Jjustice has been directiy attackea
ang severely Impaired by thus and guerillas acting for the
narcotraffickers. Last week's Washington Post carried an
article which asserted that more Colomblan males age 14 to 44
dle of assassination -- {ead polsoningy Mr. Chairman -- than
any other malady. And If that Is trues that statistic makes

Colombia uniquely unfortunate of all the naticns of the

worlde

I will return to a further analysis of Colombia It I may

in 2a momente
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My fourth reason for asserting that this Is a national
security matter s that Latin drug t;afflcking directly
detracts frow our ablility to defend ourselves from military
attacke Drug abuse has affected readiness within our armed

forces and It has flgured in forelgn espionage aimed at

Desplite significant dlversion of mllitary force to assist
UeSe law enforcexent agencies in intercicting smugglers from
the southy, the Unl}ed States Is togay unable.to detect, let
alone to apprehendy drug traffickers penetrating our most
vita) strategic zone from the souths whether by land or by
sea or by alr.

And that Is hardly a tolerable conaltlon of national
security in the age of the cruise missile and in the age of
the international terrorists with access to very
sophisticated and dangerous weaponse.

All four condltions that 1 have cited to you as natlonal
security threats have deterlorated since 1583. Mr. Chairman,
despite extensive efforts on the part of the United States
govaernment ta encourage forejfgn governménts to.eradicate
cannabisy cocay, ana opium poppies and to promote alternative
égrlculture, desplte jts extenslve interdliction eftorts
involving unprecedented cooperation among U.S. governmént
agenclesy and with forelgn governments and their sgcurlty

agenclesy anc despite some striking successes in law

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.
20 F ST., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20007 {202) 628-9300




10

1"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

-2

24

74

eptorcﬁment both here and abroads this security threat has
gromne

The tendencies as far as I know them are all adverse.
Hences ] see a need for reassessment and readjustment. As in
any other area ot naticnal strategys If our adversaries seem
to have outwitted and outmaneuvered usy then it Is time for
us to re-examine both our strateglic ends and our strategic
Reanse

Anag I propose to conduct such a re-examinatlon for you iIn
the context of Colombla. Most of your constituents, Mr.
Chairmans may have difticulty in remembering Colombia as the
country from which Panama was carved back at the turn ot the
century. Few will recall that Cotombia has a long recora as .
a staunch ally of the United States.

Mr. Morgenthau Indicated that he remembers them as an
enemys I resember them as fellow soldiers In Koreas and I am
one of the dwindling number of Americans who can bear
personal witness to the sacrifices of Colombian solalers amid
Kﬁrea's shel l-scarreds snow-covered hills.

Not many Americans willl understand that between Colombian
ana American mllitary professionals there remains a mutual
respect anda understanding of long standlngs such as exists In

very few countries of the world outside of NATC. For

-exampies General Jack Galvine the Supreme Allied Commander,

Europes was tralned as a Junior officer in the Colomblan
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Ranger Schools the Esgquella de Rancheros and owes tc that
experience his proficiency Iin martial Spanish.

Mr. Chalrmany Colombia Is a democracy. It has a
reparkable record of freedom from military Intervention in
poilticssy ana in recent decades a record of economic growth
ana poiftical vitality. .

Most Americans have seen Colomblans only iIn those
televised coffee advertisements such as those which portray
Juan Valdez who Is'up there picking the cotfee beans one by
one when they are perfectly ripes The troudble Isy as you
know better than mosty Mr. Chairmany for both Colomblans and
Americans the real Juan Valdez's have long since abandoned
coffee plcking tcr coca and cannabiss agricultural employment
which pays them 10 to 20 times moree ‘

Colombia has been the prokinate sou;ce of 50 percent of
the illegal substancesy, the product of such plants which were
smuggied Into the United States as weasured by value, By
voluaey Colombdia has been the source of more than 75 percent
of the cocalne and 60 percent of the marlijuana.,

Ang of courses in Colombia criminals have organizea
themselves Into elaborate conglomerates‘tor'the purposes ot
growings harvestingy processingy transportings sellings ana
repatriating their proflts from cocalne and marlijuana. Men
like Pablo.Escobar, the Ochoa brothers, Jaime Gillioy Caries

Lehder Rivasy these men formed larges continent-spanning,
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ocean-crossing organizationsy Matla-llke rings capable of
very larges very complex undertakings demanding slgnificant
oiscipliine and very tight management.

They bullt coca processing centers In the trackless rain
forests of the Amazon Rlver Basln in Colomblas factory
complexes which were capable of converting a mash of coca
leaves, termed paste, Into crystallilne cocainey ana doing so
in gquantities ot t;ns per week.

One of the dramatic aspects of this probles Is that it
ane looks at the potential output of such factories, it Is
many tiwmes what we have seen here {n the United States iIn
terms of estimated consumption. So there nusf be somewhere

an enormous resérve of this materlal available to these

combineses
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In order to do thlises among a trackless Jungles there are
no navigation aids out theres no radars, noc roadss virtually
no Infrastructures these organizations had to fly in
vl?tually all of the wherewlthal for this enterprise,
generators and fuely heaters and drierss reagents I|lke
alcoholy sulfurlc and hydrochlori; acldy acetones ammonias
potassium carbonates and potassium permanganates kerosenes
gasoliney ana dlethyl ether.

Most of the ray materlalsy the coca pastey is flown in
trom Peru ano Bollviay converted In the factoriesy or as they
are knowns the laboratoriess into crystalg of }ocaing
hydrochloride and then flown out acrqss the Carlbbean or
Central America to the Unlted States.

From coca leaf to successfully smugglea plaﬁtlc bags of
this white powdery substances thens these criminals eftect a
fransformat!on which reduces welght and volume by three
oraers of magni tudey and It pays them better than 35 In
profits for each $1 they invest in all of that process, a.
veryy very handsome return on investment.

ﬂouo I want to make a point which again takes issue with
;ne of the polnts advanced by Mr. Morgenthau in his excellent
presentatlon. The huge sums of money that flow back to these
criminals are held outside ot the formal economlies. That is
black money. It means that it clrculates clsfunctionally

outside of the Colombian government®s ptans to control
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inflation and uneﬁployments to share wealth with Colombia’'s
p;or and disadvantaged or to invest In education or other
loag range projects to amellorate econpmlc discontinulties,
That is not the kind of aid that President Vargas or
President Betancur was looking for from the United States.
The king of ald that they were looking for we dla not proffere.

In times as we have notedy the narco-trafficking
crganfzations became richer than the government and through
briberys extortlon'and intimidations In many respects pbetter
lﬁformed and more politically powerful.

Mre. Chalrmany when I first visited Colombia in 1983 -~

ana thils goes toc the observatlion of Senator Moynihan == the

.narcotics problen was not very high on the agenda of tne

embassy of the Unlted States. I was initlally interested in
the possible connections between the narcotraficantes and the
guerriila organizations of Colomblasy and those relationships
existeds and the embassy was able to detall sowe of what they
referred to as the narc—-FARC connection.

But they were very cleary the members of the country
teamy that I should expect no interest 6n the part of anyone
in Colombila in decing anything about such connections, and in
bartlcular, I should expect no Interest on the part of the
Colomblan militarye The view was that the Colombians regard
this drug trafflcking as a problem of the United States. It

was the American consumer which caused ite The
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narcotratlicante wasy Iin effecty a Robin Hood who was robbing
these concupiscent Amerlcans‘on behalf of Colomdbia's poory
and therefores we had to fix the problem up in the United
Statesy, not a prablem to be dealt with In Colombia.

And the Colombian militaryy 1 was tolds would be
persuaded that for them to involve themselves in any action
which intringed on the prerogatives of the narcotraficantes
would be to invite large~scale corruption within the
Colombian militarys an event which had occurred In previous
years when Colomblan governments tried to turn their security
apparatus loocse on the narcotraficantese.

I soon discoveredy howevers that there were a number of
seﬁlor Cotombian officerss men whom I came to respect deeply
as persons as well as fellow military protessionals, wno held
a very diffe;ent view from that reported.by ;ur embassye.

They recognlzed what the narcotraficantes really meanty not
only In terms as a source of intelligence ang funds for the
guerritla organlzations that they were locked in combat with,
bu£ as a Iong'tere threat to the whole social fabric ot
Colombia.

And I lett from my initial vlsit.convlnced that there‘uas
very much more to be learned about thls whole subjJect than
one could in the Amerlcan embassy in Bogota.

Shortly thereaftery President Betanc;r began to move to

ceal with a2 problem of drug abuse in Colombia occasioned by
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what I have termed was the narcotraficantes® decision to foul
thelr own nest. They began to sell in Colambla the
by-products of this processing that they conducted out In thne
Jungless and n partlculary a product called pazuco. Pazuco
is like crack in that it Is a smoked compound. Usually one
takes marl juana or tobaccoy dlips it in the coca pastey and
sells that. It Is a putative aphrodisiace It sola very well
among young Colombian males.

And there was as. a result of all of that a series ot
incidents which caused the President uiltimately to close.the
nationalt university. There was a series of suicides among
Colombian youthss very similar to those reported by Mr.
Morgenthaues And the President was Impeliea to direct the
Colombian securlty forces to strike out into the Jungles ana
go after the laboratories.

That decision led to the murder of the Minister of
Justice In earfy 1984, and thereafter, the Colomblan
governﬁent found ftselfs whether It wanted to be at war or
nots very much on the battle lines. A staté ot slege was
declareds martial law was decreed for association with the
narcotrafticantess and the Colomblans have since been engaged
to an incredible degree in a violent campaign agalnst the
criminalse

You ma§ be awarey of_course, that the Colombians sought

our asslstances We responded chlefly by talking about the
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extradition treaty between the Unlted States and Colombiay
seeking to bring people |like Escoﬁ;r and Ochoa and Carlos
Lehder Rivas befcre American justice. This was countered by
a threat fros the Colombian narcotraflicantes to klil five
Americans for every Colombian extradited to the United
Statesy and In effecty condemning to death any Colombian who
alded such an extradition,

Murders per caplita In Colombia have been five times amore
frequent than these in the United States. Dreadful as our
statistics arey Mr, Chalrmany in brief,y, imagine the sutfering
ot the people of Coloabla. Haif of Colombia's Supreme Court
Judges have been assassinated$ more than two dozen other
Judges have been kiliedy the edltor of the second largest
newspaper in the countrys hundreds of pollce officers, and of
coursey Innocent bystanders and relatives of victims also oy
the hundreds. Many a Judge}s bench sits eampty in Colombia
tocay because |lawyers fear to accept appointments ana sitting
judges have come to know that to approve a U.Se. extradition
request Is to sign their own death warrant.,

And of courses recentlys the Colombian Supreme Court,
perhaps understandablys declared that the U.Se.-Colombtlan
extradition treaty was unconstitutlional.

It was after this act by the Supreme Courty howevers that

the Attorney General of Colombla was executed.

Nows In wagling this wars the government of Colombia is
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operating uncer enormous disadvantages vis-a-vis their
opposition. The narcotraficantes have available to them the

most modern kinds of air transportationy the best of modern

communicat ions. They use satellite radlosy tor example.

They have encryptlon devicesy voice privacy mechanises, I
have seen equipment used on the alrcraft that fly between the
United States and Colombias anad I can assure you that it Is
aore sophlsticaied and more faclle than the equipment that I

had on my alrcraft at the United States Alr Force in the

United States Southern Command. They have the latest and the

beste.

Ang compared with that, the Colombia government had
equipment that dated back to the 19605.. For examples the
national communicatlons systemy the government communicatijons
system s terrestrial mlcrowave with no voice privacys no
encryption. HWe know that it is regulariy interceptecy
ingdeedy used by the narcotraficantess and the Coloambian armed
torces are well aware that the narcotraficantes can track the
movements of Colomblan armed forces and alrcraft and ships
better than their respective commandersy know more surely
where they are and where they are goinge.

Nows Mr. Chairmany I cannot assess our domestic
counterdrug programs. I Just simply do not know enough about
theme 1 have a strateglc sensey howeversy that one cannot

cperate on demand alone. You have to cperate on everything
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that we can operate ons supply and demand as well. That was
the concluslon of the President®’s Commission on Organlized
Crimey and 1 certainly endorse that jdea.

1 can ofter some evaluation of our overseas efforts
agalnst the narcctraficantes which I find to be
discouragingly ineffectual. I have argued for yéars that our
national strategy ocught to include a strong effort to back
Coloubjla’s attack on the narcotraficantes, and to back an
attack where those apparatuses are most vulnerable, in their
production centers.

We have tried to do soy I will readily admitsy but 1 also
majntain that our efforts have been haif-hearted., I have
four speclflic points of criticisme

Firsty we have been promising the Colombia's materiel

help since 1983+ We have éimply not delivereds Whether that

help Is radars or modern helicopters or actlonable

intelligencey the rhetoric of the United States has
consistentily cutrun its performance.

Secondy we have reached for short term measuressy in
eftecty, applylng Bandaids to what js a ﬁasslve societal
trauma. We have not sought to devise with the Colombians a
fong term comaprehensive strategy for dealing with the
narco=traftickerss one which would draw upon all the
respective strengths of both countriese.

Thirdy we have falled to bring American technology to
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pears elther for sho;t term tactical advantage or for longer
range devejopments which might promlse a decisive strategic
defeat for the narcotraflicantes.

Ana fourths the Unjted States has failed to engage the
capablilities of the Colombian armed forces.

I am very much awares Mre. Chailrmansy that recent U.5S.
ampassadors have been ske¢ptlical of the willingness of
Colpnbia'f mllifary leaders to accept 2 major role in a
caapalign agalinst the drug traffickers, and I know that they
are doubtful of th; capablitities of Colombian forcess even
were those forces to be committedes 1t |s clearly the case
that many senlor Colombian officers fear the Intimidation ana
corruption which is bound to follow upon any large scale
effort agalinst the drug tradersy, and it is also true that
wany of these officers believe that the drug traders are a
matter for the polices not the militarye 1In shorts they
disbelieve that the narco-traffickers threaten Colombla‘s
national security. These officers want instead to
concentrate on the guerritiase.

Butey 2s I have salags there are a fews tortunately senior
ang influential cfficers who have a very different view of
the matter who are prepared to see in the drug tratftticking a
threat to Colombijia®s very survival and are prepared to accept
the dangers entaited In a campalgn against the

narco~trafflickerse.
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These officers would probably advocate a small,
hand-picked elite force with unique training and equipment, a
force carefully guaraea to deny its penetration by the
narco-trafflickers. My own estimate |s that they could in
fact ralse such a forces and especially they could do so were
the United States prepared to provide it signiflcant
assistance in equipping ana training and supporting It with
commands cantrols communications and inteliigence.

How woulga such.a force be employed? It seems militarily
self-evident that one should attack where the foe's greatest
vulnerability Ilesy at the centers where the processing of
the drugs occurs. Such centers can be locatec by
technolegical meansy as well as using informantsy and they
can be assaulted while active. We have demonstrated that.

Moreover, most such centers are dependent upon air
supporty so that a strategy which almed concurrently at
gaining ana maintaining superlority over Colombian air space
could.infllct mortal damage on the narco-traffickers.

Even short of alr superioritys Information about the
aertal camlings and goings woula enable early warning of U.Se.
agenclesy iaw enforcement agenciesy and'more responsive and
eftective interdiction efforts on the U.S. barder,

Nows my next polnt again goes to some of the eartler
regarks aﬂout the centrality of money in this processs and

knowing that this room wassy I gathers where you have been
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holding your IN? treaty hearingss let me borrow a little bit
from the parlance that one uses in thinking about nuclear
strategy to remind you that counterforce |Is not an effective
strategy In dealing with low intensity conflicts. 0One shoula
reachy rathers for countervalue sirategles, and here plainly,
the narcotraficantes cdo not really care about the drugs.

They want the money. That Is what the name of the game is.
Ana so strategles which alm at blocking or seizing the sums
of money Involved In this business seem to me to be
inherently more valuable than strategl;s which are aimed at
dealing with the substances themselves.

I am absolutely convincedy of coursey‘that we must do
boths but we are Just now beginning to think through the
implications of the movements of these huge amounts of
itlegal == the lllegal movements of these huge amounts of
cash entaltea in thils businessy ana that genuinely |Is ﬁ
satter where I think the Unltec States can make a great deal
of progress to the benefit of its foreign policy ana Its
allles.

My next polnty Mre Chalrmany Is that I belleve that this
committee has got to reconsider its attitudes towards
security assistance. ke talked about foreign ala in the

present presentations but I am absolutely convincea that

.unless the Uniteg States |Is prepared to provide assistance to {

the foreijgn securlity apparatuses of these beleaguered
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countriesy, they cannot carry thelr weilght in this struggle.

Nows the way to go about effectlve planning and
operations Is for the Secretary of Defense to task the United
States Commander-in=-Chiet Southern Comaands to do the job, to
concert an appropriate plan with the Colombjan Minister of
Defensey coordinating the while with the Ambassador to
Colomblas and that Ambassador shouild recelve paraliel tasking
from the Secretary of State to fit the military plan Into a
broader U.S.-Colonplan national plan. Both the CINC and the
Ambassador will have to be backed with resources to ensure
impliementatlione.

And Mr. Chalrmans those sorts of directlves have not come
from Washington on either side of the bureaucratic chain of
coumande.

I remain convinced that an effort to a}tack the sources
of narcotlcs in the Colombjan sources to assert control over
the Colombian alr spacey and to provide early warning of
attempts to penetrate U.S5S. territory will pe a much more cost
effective ;ay to proceed than investing further in attempts
to interdlcting our borders., A dollar spent in Colombiay I
am confident, wlll produce far more effect on this equation
than a dollar spent on additional AWACS flights over the
continental United Statés.

Finallyy Mr. Chalrmans and consistent with what I have

been trylng to get acrosss I would also recommend a long
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range research and development effort to provide our military
services and our iaw enforcement agencies with decisive new
advantageses This phenomenon that you have correctly brought
to the attention of the Congress will not go away anytime in
the near future. It will be with the next President and his
administration and probably with Presldents ano their
adainistrations In the years thereafter. As Mr. Morgenthau

saidy as fong as there Is a demandy there probably will be a

supplye. ’ _

Recently there have been a series of studies I'n the
government of what might be daone about these matters. Heres
for examplesy is a summer study of the Defepse Science Boara
which is entitlea *"Detection and Neutratization of lilegal
Drugs and Terrorist Activities.” It conslists of several
hundrea pages of analyses and recommendatlions on technologies
that could be brcught to bear on this problem. To ay
knowledges no actlon has been taken yet within the
Department. That needs to be pressed aheaaq.

Here Is a report presented to the President just within
the past few weeksy the Report of the Commission on
Integrated Lang Term Strategy. In thils report they ceal with
the problem of tactlcal intelligence for the purposes of
dealing with the kind of violence that we are just

aiscussings low intensity conflicts Certain technologiess

according to this reporty can be especiatly helptul iIn
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bolstering tactical intelligences and these Include advanced
infornatlon'processlng Systems,—lou-cost space systems ~— |t
seems evident-on the face of It that we at least ought to
offer the Colomblans some satellite access —- networks of
sensors and other mlcroelectronic equipment to monitor the
movements of oppocsing forcesy blo and micromechanical sensors
with vastly expanded capabillties for detecting explosives
ana narcoticsy vivid digltal graphics of dangerous areas or
areas denied to U.S. advisors to permit reconnailssances
rehearsal of plans and training for speclfic operations of
the sort to which 1 made earlier allusion,

Mr. Chalrmansy only the Department of Defense has an RE&D
coamunity sufficiently robust ano experienced to develop such
technoiogles. But although the Defense Science Boara and the
Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency have separately
within the past twelve months identified specific RED
projects worth pursuing towards the objective of curtailing
ﬁarcotlcs traff lckings nelther has found a champion within
the Department ot Defense wllting to attest that the
requirements are real and worthy of priorlity over other
ctatims for scarce Defense budget dollérs. In facty this ﬁay
be one set of requirements that you here In the Congress are
going to have to assert for the Department of Defense.

Mre Chatrmany 1 have been taiking ab;ut Colombiay but

plainiys Colcocmpia should be considered as typical of other
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natlons in Latin Amerlica and the Caribbean Basin where drug

trafticking has both threatened the Indigenous government and

engaged the naticnal security interests of the United States.
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Measures such as I have proposed could also be taken in
these‘countrleSs appropriately coordinated by the realonal
coamander In chlef through each U.S, Asbassagcr.

I conclude, siry by repeating what I told the
Subcommittee on Cefense of the Senate Committee on
Appropr lations in June 1985. I then stated tﬁat cocainey
war ) juana and heroin llilegally importea from Latin America
constitutey, and I quotes "3 threat to the nation of such a
magnitude that It requires us to bring to bear all our
socletal defenseSo'both our criminal Justlce apparatus and
our national security forces.™

Events since these dread statisticss to polints certainly
provide me  no basis for altering my judgment.

Thank you very much,

Senator Kerry$ Thank you very'-uch.'General. I
appreciate enormcusly the agetajlled dlscussion of Colombias
because I think that helps us to underscore what I salag at
the outset, that these hearings are not only about Noriega -
ana Panamas they are about a probfem that is larger and that
is reaily of epidemic proportionse.

I dos howevery In my questions want to talk about General
Norlega somewhat, and I want to talk about Panama and some of
the other issues about 9roups that get hold of narcotics and
utilize them on thelr behaif,

Let mey by way of builaing the record, however, begin
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Southern Comsande.

You went there In 19833 s that correct? You assumed
commandg?

General Gorman: That is correct, Senator.

Senator Kerrys You were there from 1983 to 1985,

General Gormani Right.

Senhtor Kerry: Can you descrlibe for us the scope of the

Southern Commgand? '

General Gormang The Southern Command has burvleu over
UeSe military activities In the region fr&m the
Mexlcan/Guatemalan border south on the land mass of Central
ang South Americae.

Senator Kerryis So you are famiflars therefores with
ﬁatcotlcs problems that we have with Mexicoy narcotics
broblens growlng In Central America generally? Can you
answer affirgativelys because your nod cannot be recoraced. 1
Just want to make sure we keep the record straight.

General Gormani I am sorry. I nodded affirmativeiy.

Senator Kerry: The Southern Command is based in Panamay
is It not?

General Gorman: Yesy slry unfortunately. I have
testified before the Sehate that ] regard the presence of the
headquarters there as singularly disfunctional.,

Senator Kerry: Do you want to describe why?
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General Gormans It iIs the only headquarters of a U.S.

_combatant coamands the gates to which are guarded by foreign

troopss and the watery sewages electriclity is under control
of a forelgn powers ands at the momenty I would have to say
probably a hostile powerj not a very useful kind of a posture
to have a headquarters involved in signiticant mititary
undertakinge.

Senator Kerry: Is it possible that those very facts are
part ot the reasons that the powers that be ot Panama may
have been permitted to do things that otherwise might be
ﬁrohiblted? )

General cGormani I suspect thaty tirsty we would have
ﬁeen much better had the government taken my aavice tendered
tirst in 1983 ang gotten the headquarters out. There would
have been a lot less concern about Panamanian attitudes
towards our activitles.

Secondy less concern over insecurity ot the headquarters

than the simple abitlity readily avaltable to the Panamanian

defense forces to make |life uncomfortable for Americans

“living In Parama.

The Panamanijan Defense Forces issued the l{icense piates
for the autorob ilese.

The Panamanian Defense Forces laid down the rules and
regujations regarding the wearing ot the unitorm. The

soldier wearing the uniform downtown in Panama Citys for
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exanplés Is subJect to arreste.

The Panamanlan Defense Forces had demonstrated in the
years before I went down tnerey';981 and 1982, an ability to
make iife extraordinarily uncomfortabie for American

servicenmen statloned there.

One wasy thereforey interesteds, and [ was certainly
interesteds Iin malntalning good relatlonsy but I can assure

you I would not have In any sense done so at the sacritice of

carrying forward a charge of complicity In drugs against any

sember of the Panasanlan Defense Forces.

Senator Kerry: This is probab)y an appropriate place te
make Jt clear in the records alsos that when you arrived in
Panama In 1983, there had previously been a kind of tension
between the eil ltary command and the State Department cown
there as to who was going to deal with General Norjega. 1Is
that accurate?

General Gormani: At the time |t was General Paredesy who
was the commander of the Panamanian Defense Forces, then the
Guardia Nacional at the Panamanian National Guard.

Paredes had politlcal ambitlons ands In facty the tirst
sugmer I was there retired so that he woula be eligible to
run for president in the elections ot 1984. Hhe haa already
begun to make polltical statements, and the Aabassador had
hada a talling out wlith him over his pollilcal actlvities.

My actions upon arrlving on the scene were simply to
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tender the whole problem of relations with the Guard to the
embassys sayings In effects locks we have an election coming
up In this ccuntrye. Tﬂls is going to bpe a very political |
year ahead. The Unltea States Southern Command has many
ﬁroblens on Its list of misslions which are goling to require
€y frequent absence from the countrys sSo¢ yous Mre. Ambassador,
are golng to call the shots herey and my lnstructions to ay
;ubordinates were to do nothing that was not decided upon or
clieared with the embassy.

Senator Kerry: Now, the military command had under its
controlsy did it nots several Intelligence agencies. [Is that
accurate?

General Gormans Yese.

Senator Kerry: Would you describe those for us?

General Gor;ans I would prefer not toe

Senator Kerry: 1 do not mean describe them In detall but
Just by headinge The Navy had onej the Arsy had one. Is
that accurate? E£ach had Its intellligence unit?

General Gorman: Yes. Each of the service components
under my command had Intelllgence organizations. They were a
nexus of varlous kinds of organlzations Qlth varylng
capabillitiess ang they changed from time to time.

Senator Kerrys Prior to your arrival in Panama as
conmander..you recelved both from general sources, diplomatic

Nnetwarks worg of mouths et ceteras as weil as from

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY., INC.
20 F ST.. N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 (202) 628-9300




"Sa

10

n

12

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

24

96

intelligence sources briefings and knowledge of the reglon,
diga you not?

General Gormani: I did.

Senator Kerry: O0ld that knowledge Inciuce a knowledge of
Noriega and hls nefarlous actlvities?

General Gormani: Noriega wass at the time, a colonels the
head of Panamanian Intelligence. Yesy he was identifled to
e,

Aftef'l became the Commander In Chiety I had an
investigation conducted Into Colonel Noriega®s connections
and activitiess The picture that emerged was definitely not
one of a blue collar criminal. This fellow was or at least
behaved as though he was a businessman. He had holaings in
all sorts of commercial enterprisess shipping firmss
airlinesy various kinds of Importing and exporting activities.

It was quite evident that very littie was going on of a
commerclial nature In Panama from which he did not in some
sense dlirectly profit. He was making money and making money
in a very diverse way,

Senator Kerry: Did you understand precisely how he was
doing that?

General Gormané No.

Senator Kerry: Did you come to {earn that?

General Gormans: No. ‘

The reports that I got were all of the second ana thirag
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pa}ty nature: |t is rumored thatse it Is reportea that, we
believe that this and thus is so.

khat I.éot was the Impression of a man who was certainly
venatls was lnvolved in a lot of veryy, very shady kinds of
unagertakingss but 1 never saw a report that pinned him
specifijcally to a criminal act or undertaking of the sort
that one could aaduce in a court.

Senator Kerry: MWere you there at the time that Dr. Hugo

Spadafura was killed?

Ceneral Gorman; Na.

Senator Xerryi: You had left just prldr to that?

Genera) Gormani That is right.

Senator Kerry: That was late 1985, I guess.

Nows when did you flrst hear that General Norlega was
invoived In laundering drug money in the narcotics business?

General Gormani In the President's Commission on
Urganlzed Crime there were documents that were put in front
ot us for our examinations I was asked to comment on all of
that.

Senator Kerry: When was that?

General Gormani 1986,

Senator Kerry: Prlor to thaty while you were in Southern
Commana?

General Gormani No3 to the contrarye The

representations that were made to me then by presumably
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knowieaggeable offliclajs of the embassy were that General
Norlega was a major contributor to American efforts to do
something about narco trafficking,

Senator Kerry$ If I could Just interrupt you for a
minute,

Those responses were In response to your inquiries of
concerny were they not? You were ralsing this issue as one
of concern?

General Gormané Yes.

Senator Kerry: You were told essentially noy Generals do
not worryes things are okay? 1Is that accurate?

General Gorman: That is accurate.

Senator Kerryd Nows can you tell us what oftilclals
shared that with you?

General Gormani Againy I would prefer to |dentify those
officialsy because of their jobs to you in executive session.
But sutfice to says they were in a position to know.

They palnted out to me that General Norlegas by this time now
a general anda by thils time a commander of what he had renameg
the Panamanlan Defense Forcess, had coopQrated with the United
States to the extent of identifying ana destroying a large
Shlpnent of dlethy) etherys one of the agents used in cocaine
processings and General Norlega haa conducted an attack on a

Colombian drug processing laboratory that he had detected in

the Darlen.
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These were cited as Just the most visible evidences of
the degree to which he was coocperating with American agencies
concerned with such matters.

Senator Kerrys Nowy It Is truey is it noty, that of the
23 people arrestedy including General Norliega's secretary ory
1 pelievesy second in commandy Lleutenant Mellos who were
arrested at Carlensy they were all released subsequently? Is
that accurate?

General Gornan? I cannot testify to thate. I do not knowe

Senator Kerryi Welly there wiil be later testimony In
the course of the hearings as to what happened.

General Gorman: Yesoe [ know that Mello was In
Venezuelay I bdelieve.

Senator Kerrys You know Mellos who was afrested In
Darlieny to be who? '

General Garman: I cannot say. [ co not know.

Senator Kerryi: Nows Generaly were there officials within
our governaent during that course of time that you were there
ana subsequently who wanted to take actlion against Noriega?

| General Gorman: I do not know anyone who has ever dealt
with General Noriega in an offjcial capacity for the Unitea
States Government that would not have preferred to be dealing
with scmebody else.

Senator Xerry: More specificallyy were there not etforts

made by some ot these people to push a specific detachment
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processs to say we have to move to the alternative? Were
there not specific recommendations by people?

General Gormans I did not hear any when I was in offices
Senator.

Senator Kerrys 0ia you make any?

General Gormans Nos 1 did not. My attltude on Noriega
is very slnllas to that of Mr. Morgenthaue [ see him as a
pleple on ihe rugp of the elephant. He was certainiy not a
major strategic factors in my views given the missions that I
was discharging for the government., He was a very nian
player,

Senator Kerrys wWhat services did General Norlega pertform
tor the Unjted Statesy to your knowledgey that gave him this
claim on us?

Generai Gormani Welly to clte my own particular
relationships with hims he promised to permlt me to retain
the School of the Americas In the Repuplic of Panamasy a move
that would have been advantageous for Panama and for the
United States.,

He did not dellver on that pramise., So as far as the one
thing that I personally asked of him, I.got'nothlng tor that
relationshipe.

Concernlng the other contributions that he is alleged to
have made; 1 can only say “alleged" because [ get jt

secondhande He w2s dealing with otficials ot the embassy on
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matters pertaining to drug traftickings which we Jjust
dlséussea; the Cuban presence in Panamas one of the largest
in the hemispheres. Just off of the end of the runway of
Howard Air Force Base belonsing to the United States Southern
Commana Is the Paclific base of the Cuban fishing fleet.

There is very substantial coming and gcing of Cubans every
week to and from that instatiatlon,

Senator Kerry: MWere you aware at any time of his
tratficking tn visas for Cubans?

General Gorman: I knew that he was deeply involved in
the comings and golngs of Cubans.

Senator Kerry: Do you want to be more expllcit?

General Gormand Nos I do not think so.

Senator Kerry:s Not at this time?

ceneral Gormani Right.

Senator Kerry: e will get it out In executive sessione.

Ceneral Gorman:i Yesy I think you need an executive
session.

He traveled wldelys ana he reportead to American offticials
on his travels. He traveled in France, In Northern Africaj
he visited Cuba frequently and had conversations with Fidel
Castro3 and he provided reports concerning these
conversatlons,

1 g0 not think any of us put much credence in what he

saide but there certalnly was that kind of =-
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Senator Kerry: WKhen you say "none of us put much
credence¥y he was a CIA operator. He was working with the
CIA.at that times correct?

General Gormani I do not want to testify about that.

Senator Kerry: Welly it has been pubtished.

General Gorman; I did not put much credence in ite.

Senator Kerry3 It has been publicly stated in most

Journals In the United States °that hé was working for the ClA

at the time. Is that not a matter of public recora?

General Gorman: Most journals in the United States are
wrong most of the time about such aatters; Senator,

Senator Kerry: Are-they wrong about that one, or.you ao
not want to testify?

General Gorman: I do not want to testify.

Senator Kerry: When you say we did not put much stock in
what he was saylngy why was the relationship important, then?

Genera) Gorman: It was not Iimportant to me.

Senator Kerryi Why was |t lmportant to others?

General Gormans I cannot testify. I ac not know.

Senator Kerry:s You have no sense of that at all?
Speéulatlvelyy you have no opinion as to why people founa it
still jeportant?

General Gormans I éould certainly repeat what I said

before. Our headquarters was there, We were, in effecty in

the hands af thls mane.
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Secondlyy he did have significant power tc harassy to
intimjiocate and tc make life difficult for the sen and women
ot my command. Iy therefores treated hlm with a degree of
circumspections. I would not do anything to irritate him lest
he Indulge In one of his picayune acts of retribution, of
which we knew hir to be fully capadle.

éenator Kerrys I want to come back to General Noriega |n
a couple of contextsy but I would Ilke to keep going on this
broad issue that we are talking about a {lttle bit, because I

think It ties into It and to some of the flnél questions
about it.

have narcotlcs traffickers begun to operate out of Costa
Rica and toc establish alr strips and other intrastructure inA
Costa Rlca?

General Gormang I began to see as early as 1984 evidence
ot Increased tratfic aut of Colombia and out af Panama Into
Costa Rlca.

1 know from zy own sources and from that of other
agencles that there was a significant increase each year in
1984 and 1985 when I last looked at ite.

I looked at statistics when I was with the President®s
Commission on Organlizead Crimey which seemea to laply that the
trafticking involved both mar i juana and cocalne ana that,
beglnning in 1984, there was a significant indigenous

mari juana growing operationsy particularly in the northern
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part of the country where the Costa Rican law apparatus is

scantyy at beste

The Costa Ricans that I know, officials of the Costa
Rican government who deait wlth such mattersy were, at the
time that I letty very apprehensive abgout the jmplications of
that for the futures but I have no recent information that I
could imparte.

Senator Kerry: MWhat avbout Cuba during the period that
you were there?

General Gorman: Cuba is an interesting case because |t
is on the opposite side of the ledger. A1l of the
information at my dilsposal suggests that the Cubans maae it
possible for drug.trafflckers to do business without
significant interference from the Cuban security apparatus.

Indeeds thare is a2 tot of evidence that they gots in some
instance at leasty actijve cooperation in terms of ports mage
avallabley islangs made avallable for the transfer of
substances from a large oceangolng vessel to a small boat tor
a run~in to the Unjted Statesy et cetera.

Senator Kerryi I might add that a number of our
wnitnessess beginning this afternoon uith the personal
invoivementsy will corroborate that in testimony.

General Gormani In that connections It Is worth notingy,
ana it goes agailn to this hearing in 1984 that I mentioned to

Senator Moynihany in that same hearing ! laicd out what 1 knew
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about the movement of the Escobar Operation from Colombia
3nto Nicaraguas a move which was apparently done with
signiticant involvement of Cubans, ‘

There were a3 lot ot goings and comings between Nilcaragua
and Cuba asscciated wlth the activity at Los Brasilias
Alrport. We were very puzzled by all of that. We did not
know what was gbing on. I did not really understand what was
happening untll the indlctments were brought in the feceral

court Iin Florlda concerning the drug operatlion that Hr..

Escobar was runninge.

That airports Las Braslllas,.ls north and west of the
capitaty and we knew it to be under the control of the
Minlstry ot the Interior. What we did not understand is why
all the Cubans were going and com!ng into that particular
}ocale; .

Wwells if you can take the incidents that have been
reported In court as Indlicatlive ot what was happenings It is
as simple as Mr. Escobar set up his drug processing 1ab there

with the assistance of a number of Cubans.
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Senator Kerry: Did you gain evidence af Increasing drug
trafticking and involvement of the Medelllin cartel with
élther Nicaraguas the Bahamass or Mexlico? Or all three?

General Gorman; Firsty let me make the point that I did
not suffer from a lack ot people who spoke the language. I
had individuals in my organizations who were Columbianoss who
knew the parlance af the tratfickerss ana my heart goes out
to the law enforcement agencies that have to deal with thase
matters. .

Without that kind of talenty It is a2 very aifficult
target. They are very clrcumspect. They have burst
transmisslon comaunications eguipmenty as [ mentioned
earliery a hilgh .degree of encryption. It is a tough target.

The trends throughout 1984, as near as we were able to
track them from the distance at which we were then operating,
were that the bressure mounted by the Betancourt government
had caused a number of the Medellln cartel to make the
decision to move their operations outslide cf the country.

Gne of those moves was Into Nlcaraguaes And as I says we
dia not really understana what was golng on until after the
DEA brought forward its evidence In court. 8ut it does seem
that that was just one of a number of such displacements,

ke had reason to beljeve at the time that some ot the
operations were moved into Venezuela. We haag reasoé to

belleve that some of them were moved itnto Brazil. We had
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some information, not corroborated, that scme had been movea

jnte Ecuadore.

But the movements that were the easlest to foltlow were
those into the Caribbean istands ano Nicaragua. And I think
that that probably happened.

Senator Kerrys 1 live just a few miles from a farm In
Virginia which was rented by a group of Columbians and
converted into a cocaine processing laboratory. They were
flying paste Into }he United States.

Nows when they will go to that lengths you can imagine
the economic di sadvantage of doing that uﬁen you go from
paste to crystal and you decrease the volume and welght by a
factor of 200,

It they are wllling to do thaty they have got the
wherewithal to go almost anywhere they want to. Andg that
bespeaks the Importance of regionality in addressing this
phenomenon.

One of the dysfunctions of the Unitea States government
in getting 3 handle on this is oufr propensity to wire up our
embassles in stoveplipess The chief of station reporting up a
stovepipes the ambassador repoftlng up a3 stoveplpe.

Very little exchange of intormation among the several
undertakings in the region. And that kind of a reglonal
flushout phenomenony 2s [ says did not make sense because of

this blind side in our military Intelligence. We ald not
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understand enough about the drug businesse.

Let me give you one other example which goes to this
ditticulty. There Is a faclility In Miami which is supposea
to be watching the Caribbean basin for the purposes of
detecting inbound drug shipmentse.

When I testifled before the House Joint Ccamittee on
Narcotics in 1985 1 took advantage of being there to walk
across the street and into this cénter and ask to see some of
their recent Informatlon pertaining to drug movements.

And 1 was surprised to discover in the f;rst batch of
reports they handed te me a group of reports from El
Salvadors of aircraft coming and goings landing in EI
Salvadery and then departing on northerly azimuths, as though
ihey were fiying up into Guatemala or Mexico.

I dld not have any of that kina of Information available
to me in my previous commande I Inqulred whether my
successor hag access to such informations. The answer was
noe.

There is a membrane, an artificial membrane, between the
intelligence relating to the drug bﬁslnéss and the
intelligence rslating to the mititary businesss My argument
then and now Is that we should not aliow that kind of
distinction to be drawne

And 1 think that much has been done within the

intelligence comaunlity to break down those membranes., But I
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am noi conflident that the traditional law enforcement person
fooks at intell igence the way that a military intelligence
officer would regard It.

The whole f Ixation on prosecution leads to 3 set ot
procedures and EEI, essential elements ot information, which
are very diffterent trom what a mititary intelligence
operation would focus on. We need bothe. ne have not deen
getting it.

Senator Kerryi How do narcotlcs traffickers tie In with
guerilia movements of lett or right?

Genera) Gormand That is difterenty of coursey country by
country. Let us start by sayling that if one wants to
organlze an armed reslistance or an armed undertaking for any
purposesy the easy place to get the money and the easy places
to get the guns are in the drug world. .

So whether you are ==

Senator Kerrys Let me Just interrupt you. You said to
;e earjier when we were talking that not a groups there s
not a group that does not use narcotics in order to fund it
;t sone.point.

General Gormani I believe that tﬁ be the case. I know
of no exceptijon.

Senator Kerry: DOid you run into that while you were in
Central America? 0Did you see that happeélng with respect to

El Salvador or Nicaragua or any of those areas?
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General Gormand The Salvacdorean guerilias grow pot anc
sell It on the tocal markets, Virtually everybody who thinks
a;out a revoluticnaryy or coup detat, revolutionary sovement
or a coup detaty et ceteray has to get money.

Nows this iss I thinks a very central issue. It goes
back to the point that I made about the impertance of the
United States getting a handle on the money flowse If you
want to have a revolutiony Senators g;t RMONEYye

Money Is what fueled the Salvadoreans. Not Marxist
ideologys but‘none;. Angd the aoney came from clverse
overseas sources. We know a jot about that now that we dia
not back In 1983. Or we learned a tot about It in 1%83 ana
1984.

But wlthout aoneysy there would have been no vioience. Or
certainly not the degree of violence that existed in that
country. The most ready source of moneys big wmoneys easy
moneys fast moneys sure moneys cash moneys is the narcotics
rackete

Senator Kerrys: Were you aware at any time of the
Southern front depending on narcotics money to support (t?

General Gormani Referring to the -

Senator Kerry: Southern front In Costa Ricay the
Southern front with respect to Nicaragua.

Genera] Gorman: Welly as ] sayy I knew that there were

tairly slzable marijuana operatlons up there. Nowy whether
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those were contrasy you know there are 200,000 Nicas in Costa
Rica right nowe

And up on that border there were defectors from the
Nicaraguan armed forcess there were so-called contrass
sometimes contras sometimes not --

Senator Kerrys What I am trylng tc get at is not as
specitice Based on your knowledge of how it works and what
you understood from your experience down theres it would not
surprise you?

General Gorman; Not at all. Particulariy It they hadg
been on somebody®s payroll and had their funds cut offy woula
be the natural recourse of those people,

Senator Kerry: Nows you also sald that when Mr. Noriega
visited the Unlted States he visited in a different way than
other people that were under your command. Can you describe
that?

General Gorman: Typicallys when a senior mliltary
coamander came to the United Statesy he was the guest of the
milltary establ Ishment of the United States, and would
usually be escorted by myself or by cne of sy principals
while he was up here. Normal courtesy plus our interest §n
hearing what he saide. |

Sos for examples I visited this body with the Commander
ot the armed forces of Honduras twices the Minister of

Defense of EIl Saitvador on two occaslionsy the Minister of
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De*ense of Columbiay several othér visits which 1 aid not
personally attend to came out of my coamand,

We nevers in my memorys sponsorea 3 visits General
Norlega had other mechanisms at his disposal for visiting the
United States and cther sponsors here. They uere nﬁt the
mitltarye.

And I do not thinks you knows that General Noriega
considered himself Just a mllltary commander. He saw himselft
as the embodiment of the dream of Omar Torillose

'

Senator Kerry: Who dld sponsor his visit when he caﬁe up
here?

General Gormani Another agency of the governmenty
Senatof.

Senator Kerrys Not the State UDepartment.

General Gormani Not the State Department.

Senator Kerry: Not the White House specifically.

General Gormani No.

Senator Kerry: Not Health and Human Services,
certainiye.

General Gorman: Not to my knowledge.

Senator Kerry: Dld anybody want you to keep some
distance fros Noriega durlng the time you were there?

General Gormans I never recelved any such instructions,
except from the Ambassaders and then under specifl¢ cases in

pointe
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Senator Kerry: But yoh did receive specific instructlons
ffom the Ambassagor as to certaln cases.

General Gormani (Ohy yesSe

Senator Kerrys Ana do you recall what those were?

Generat Gormani Wells for examples In the whole set ot
negotiations Invelving the Paredes retirement and the role
that Paredes'uas golng to play In the upcoming political
campalgny we got guldance from the Ambassador to keep away
from any asscciation with the soclal events ano avold making
any statements that aight be used on behalt of what the
embassy regarded as an untoward development in Panamanian
politicse A judgment in which they were eacinently correcte.

Senator Kerry: NWhite you were at the Southern Command,

were you ever advised by anyone that Noriega was proviaing

help to the contras at the request of the United States?

General Gorman: No.

Senator Kerry: You never had any knowledge of'that?

General Gorman: Nos and I would be pretty sure that it
it were going on In that senses somehow or other we would
have picked that up.

Senator Kerry: Were you ever aware durlng that period of
time of arms shipments to E|l Salvadors or anywhere elses by
General Norjega?

General Gorman: No.

Senator Kerry: Your Intelligence ald not have thats or
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you dia not at that point?

General Gormans There was some cooperation between the
Panamanlan defense forces and the Salvadorean defense
forcese

General Noriega took a direct interest in the raising and
training of the clvil detense forces in El Salvador as an
example, Some Panamanian officers went up and worked with
Salvadorean stafft on preparation of plans.

- But I do not know of any arms shipments as such., And |
thinks agains 1 woulo think that I would have known that,

Senator Kerryi At one point you tried to argue wlthin
the ODefense Uepartment that you thought there were things we
couloc ao and that we ought to be docing with respect to this
Central America narcotics probiems but that you felt you diag
not get a favorable hearingy or you could not make it move.
Can you describe that?

General Gormani Yes., The representations that I made to
you today are essentially those that I made beglnning in
1983,

I was trylng to draw the attention of the Department of
Defense to the larger strateglic issuesy the more enduring
strateglc issues. You wlil recally I am sures vividiy, that
in those years nobody wanted to talk about anything but El
Salvador. ‘

El Salvacor was the problems Not the contrass not
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Nicaraguas but E| Salvador. And that remained the casey [
would says untils just about until I left office. Then the
tocus began to shitt to the Nicaraguan incidenty and the
¥upport of the contras.,

But I could not get the attention of the JCS or the
Secretary of Defense on what I considered to be the more
acute probleay certainly the one that was going to be of much
longer duratlion for the United Statesy thils massive powerful
emergling phenomencon of these internatjonal drug cartels,

Senator Kerry: With respect to the international drug
cartel and that effort Iin the Detense Departments in our
private conversations you made what 1 thought were some very
straightforwarde graphic descriptiaons ot the probiem,

And to paraplhrase quote youy If I may without viotlating
anything that I think was between uss I hopes and you tell me
it you do not want me to say that, But you sald we are a cay
lates a doilar shorts you said we are talkings promising,
tailing to deliver year after year.

General Gorman: I said thate.

Senator Kerry: You said the gun and badge boys cannot do
ite '

General Gormani I sald thate. Cannot do it alone,

Senator Kerry: Cannot do it alone.

Genera} Gorman: Cannot do It alone.

Senator Kerry: I agree. That these guys are a very well
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organized phenomenon. Almost organized like a military
campaigns Why are we a dollar lates short? Why are we
failingy what is your sense of why we are failing on this?

General Gormans Welly let me cite three contributing,
these are almost cultural sorts of attitudinal problems.

The tlirst is that the primary missiony focuss the proper
preoccupation of the Department of Defense ls the East-West
prebiems particularly the Sovlét probtlems And If it Is not
colored Soviet, it Is not a matter for the Department of

.

Detense.

I happen to believes and 1 am sure you would agrees that
many of the threats to our security arise from factors over
which the Soviets exert very tittle controis If any. And
many of the problems that we face would exlst )t there were
no Scviet Unijon ory a compllanty frilendly cooperate Soviet
Unjon.

But there are many In the Department of Defense, and they
are in very high positionss who simply believe that if it Is
not part ot the UL.Se.~Soviet businesssy the milltary has no
roles or the Department has no rble of prerocgative,

Secondy there are many yho hold with great vehemence to
the belief that there ought to be a "“separation of powers™

between the military and the law enforcement agencies. Ang

.they see the boundarles that have been drawn between them

since the drafting of the Constltution, as rightsy propery
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something to be safeguardeds And they can get very
ﬁrinclpled, 1 guess Is_the ward about all of thate

Agalns I simply belleve that we are dealing here with a
phencmenon that requires us to reconsider those legal
pboundaries. The Congress has shown a much more illumined
attitude In its moves on Posse Comitatuss for examples than
some atf the senior officials of the Department of Defense.

Finallys It is a dirty businesss Senator. It is not a
crisps Cclean set of Issues and undertaklings. And frankly, a
lot of my fellow professionals are silmply repeiled by the
kinds ot people they have to do business Qith in order to get
into this realm. They would much prefer to consign it to the
Coast Guard and the other law enforcement agencies.

Put all of that togethery and you can begin to see why
some of these representations fall on deaf ears. ‘An} theny
of coursey there Is the question of priorities tn a time of
dwindling budgets.

Al of'thls can only be undertaken at the expense of

something elses and that something else is always much more

imporfant.

Senator Kerrys With respect to that attitudes et cetera,
as far back as the early 1970s, President Nixon's arug
enforcement adnlnlstration was plcking up intelligence on
General| Norlega's involvement in narcotlcs trafficking. You

are aware of thatey correct?

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.
20 F ST., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001 {202) 628-9300




10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

24

. 118

General Gormani Nos I a2am not awares you knows how far

back al) ot that goese.

Senator Kerrys But narcotics trafficking on the part of
certaln etements of the Panamanlan defense forces became part
of the canal treaty discussions in 1877, You are aware of

that?

General Gormang Not aware of thate.

Senator Kerry: You ate not aware of that.

General Gormani But I am not surpriseds I am not
Qufprlséd.. . |

Senator Kerry: Then In 1984y as you are aware, General
Nortega provides safe haven for key members of the Medellin
cartels Correct?

General Gormani During the negotiations with the
Attorney General of Columbias at the request of'Presldent
Betancourt.

Senator Kerry: At that points Panama becomes a major
drug laundering s money launderings drug transit money
laundgering locate, Correct?

General Gormani Correct,

Senator Kerrys: Tooays General Noriega stands indicted by
two United States granag juries. Today It is fair to say that
the interests we have in Panama are greatly at risks that the

country is destabllizea. 1Is that not accurate?:

General Gormans: Yese
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Sehator Kerry: So what do we say about that policy? In
light of that hlstorys how well have the natiaonal security
interests of the United States been protected while we have
basically been willing to bed down with this narcotics
trafticker of major consequence?

General Gormani The whole history of our relatlionship
with the Republic of Panama has a severe indictment of the
United States' abliity to handle Its relationshlp with any
foreign country.

But it Is a particular Indictment because In thils
countrys as in the case of the Republic ot the Philippines,
we have had a long residentlal involivement, unilke our
relatlonship with Columbilay, for example.

I meany, we are part and parcel of the history of Panama

in 2a blood senses and in an In situ sense, And the fact that

we have al lomed these events to eventuate in the country
being run by this plmple on the rump of an elephanty to use
Mr. Morgenthau'’s phrasey Is a travesty of sorts in American
historye.

And 1 do not exempt myselt from blame in this respect,
should have been more prescients shouid have been more
aggressivees 1 suppose that most other officlalss like mey
would make the same case. That back at the time I had my
gsind on other things and [ did not seey i could not foresee

where all ot thils would go.
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Senator Kerrys Kells Genefals I think you have been very
torthcomings and I certainly appreciate your testimony.
There are some questions that we do want to ask you in
Executive Session, and there are a few that we want to ask
abgut the record. The time is moving rapialye.

I am golng tc place some questions In the record from

Senator D*Amatos which you wouid also l¥ike to have answered.

If 1 mays there |Is one |tem here that 1 got.dellvered to me
this mornings 1 ulg not have a chance to ask you.

And if you ccouldy perhapsy, abproach me heres because [
Just want to see If you can answer Ity and I will not ask the
question If you cannot,

General Gormanid Let the recorda reflect I*m approaching.
Senator Kerry: Thank you very much, General. HWhat I
Qou{n like to do s identify for the record an exhiblit which
we will call Exhibit No. 1y which is a now-unclassitiea page
of Olliver North's alaries which bears In It the title General
Gorman.underllneos and then asterlsks include arug cases. Ana

you have seen that nows and you understand that?

General Gorman: Yessy siro. What Is the date again?

Senator Kerry: The &ate is 12 June‘1984. Did you have
occasion to weet with Oliver North trequently?

General Gormanid Frequentlys yes.

Senato} Kerrys With respect to?

General Gormani HWells he travetied frequently in the
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regions usually wlth an ofticlat party of some description.
I con't know about the particular gatey but I coula infer
that it Is a reference to the point that SQUTHCOM's
briefingss both in Washington and .in the reglicny ailways
included the drug case.

That is to sayy we were trying to call attentlon to
vislting Congresslonal delegationss vislting teams from the
Administraticns to the fact that the problem In the region
was signiticantiy !arger than the rubric of the Salvadorean
insurgencye

And I do not knows againe. There Js Just those cryptic
phrases there from which to draw for an alde memolr. But 1
would Infer from the way that's laid out that he Is thinking
of including In his own presentatlons a comparable
diaension.

And I would guess that what ts underneath there that is
blocked out is probably some of the stutf that he picked up
trom cne of our conversationse.

Senator Kerry? S0 the drug Issue was at that time being
discussed?

General Gormani Wells I was certainly dcing my
damnedests Senators to discuss It. Each of my presentations

to the Deftense Resources Boardsy each of my meetings with the

JCSs any opportunity that I haag to testify before this boagy

or the other I brought It upe.
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Senator Kerry: Okaye Wells I thank you very much,.ano
that helps us enormousliy. What I woula like to do iIs reserve
the righty Generals it you are willings we would like to
follow up on some of those things privatelys it we can.

General Gormani Yesy slire.

Senator Kerry: And talk further. HWe wiill recess until
2300y when we will resume tor the atternoon witnesses. Thank

you very muche
(Whereupons at 1310 psmes the hearing was recessedsy to

resume at 23C0 pems the same day,.)
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